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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS, Program Solicitation NSF 99-94

"Operation of the Antarctic Bibliography and the Bibliography on Cold Regions Science and Technology" 

The following questions—asked after NSF 99-94 was issued—and answers prepared by NSF and CRREL are intended to help proposers. 

1. Are printed products required?

No.  See 1.h. in "Objectives and awardee statement of work" in NSF 99-94.  However, CRREL needs one paper copy per year of records generated for the Bibliography on Cold Regions Science and Technology.

2. Will the government use the bibliographies to supply literature searches and bibliographic records to requesters for free?

No.  A major intent of this solicitation is to transition some of the cost from government to users. The government retains the right to use the bibliography internal to government in accordance with paragraph 18 of NSF's Grant General Conditions  (http://www.nsf.gov/cgi-bin/getpub?nsf98gc1a).  As stated in paragraph 18, the awardee will hold copyright.

3. Are the interagency agreement documents between the prior performer (the Library of Congress) and NSF and CRREL available for review?

A copy of the interagency agreement may be requested from gguthrid@nsf.gov. Put your fax number in the e-mail.  NSF will follow its internal process for providing this information. 

4. Are project thesauri available?

Subject terms are on the Library of Congress Cold Regions Bibliography Project website (http://lcweb.loc.gov/rr/scitech/coldregions/welcome.html).

5. What percentage of the cited material is not in English?

About 35 percent of the 217,268 records are not in English. Proposers should do searches on the existing database at the Library of Congress Web site using language delimiters (delimiters are subfields, e.g., "language," in the computer records). A cited document in the database that did not come with some English language material (title and/or abstract) will have only the non-English language delimiter. A document that had an English language title and/or abstract will have dual language delimiters.

6. What abstracting services must be provided?

Section 1.d. in "Objectives and awardee statement of work" in NSF 99-94 requires abstracts for items cited in the Antarctic Bibliography.  If an author abstract is not available or cannot be used due to copyright restrictions, one must be written.  If the abstract is in a foreign language, it has to be translated into English.  If the abstract does not show the relevance of the cited item to the Antarctic, that information is to be added.

As the full texts of cited items are made more readily available under this cooperative agreement, NSF is willing to consider proposed changes from this abstracting requirement.

7. Will the government continue to provide full text retrieval of cited items by interlibrary loan or other means?

No.  After the awardee has its full-text retrieval service in operation, the government will stop performing this function.  

8. How many users are there of the existing service?

When the Library of Congress stopped printing the monthly Current Antarctic Literature at the end of 1996, there were approximately 1,500 free subscribers, of which many were institutions with multiple readers.  The mailing list for the monthly Current Literature: Cold Regions Science and Technology numbered about 600. The LC and CRREL websites, which provide monthly current literature services for both bibliographies, had roughly 50,000 hits from April 1998 to March 1999.

9. What happens to project income?

See paragraph 19 of NSF's Grant General Conditions (http://www.nsf.gov/cgi-bin/getpub?nsf98gc1a) 

10. How are the databases distributed now? 

They are publicly available without charge at the Library of Congress and CRREL websites. The National Information Services Corporation (http://www.nisc.com) sells CD-ROM and Internet access to these databases and other polar bibliographies in its Arctic and Antarctic Regions database.  Printed annual volumes of the Antarctic Bibliography are available from the Government Printing Office (http://www.gpo.gov/).  Printed annual volumes of the Bibliography on Cold Regions Science and Technology are available through Defense Technical Information Center (DTIC) and National Technical Information Service (NTIS). 

11. Must these databases continue to be available to the public for free?

No.  The solicitation envisions that this project should have the goal of reducing the cost to the government. See "Project Funding" in NSF 99-94.  See question 2.

12. What is the current source of documents cited in these databases?

Many cited documents are in the Library of Congress collection.  As paragraph 5 of "Government-furnished items" states,  the project sponsors provide some cited documents.  A goal of this program solicitation is that the awardee develop means of acquiring documents and citations from multiple sources.

13. What is the current method of distribution of the full text documents contained in the retrospective collection of microfiche?

CRREL distributes documents cited in the Bibliography on Cold Regions Science and Technology by interlibrary loan.  The Library of Congress Photoduplication Service sells full texts of uncopyrighted items cited in both bibliographies. NSF has microfiche sets of the full texts of antarctic items at the NSF building in Virginia, at its three research stations in Antarctica, and at the University of Canterbury in New Zealand in association with NSF's antarctic facility in Christchurch; these collections are for on-site use only.

14. Why did NSF stop funding the Library of Congress Antarctic Bibliography at the end of fiscal 1998?

The project had not been recompeted in many years. NSF wished to open this opportunity to the broad community of bibliographers.

15. What are the sizes of the last NSF award (for FY98 operations) and the most recent CRREL award (for FY99 operations) to the Library of Congress for the Cold Regions Bibliography Project?

NSF (FY98): 

$245,821

CRREL (FY99):
$244,378

16. How strictly must a proposal conform to the solicitation?

Proposals must address all points of the solicitation.  Innovative approaches to achieve the goals of the solicitation are encouraged.

17. Is NSF aware of any significant communications regarding this program solicitation that are taking place among polar bibliographers or librarians?

Scott Polar Research Institute, Cambridge, England, which collaborated with the Library of Congress in preparation of the Antarctic Bibliography, has circulated a critique of this program solicitation.  Contact William Mills, Keeper and Librarian, wjm13@cam.ac.uk.

